ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 20, 2009
3:20 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 175

"An  Act relating to insurance, including treating as
confidential certain information submitted to the director of
i nsurance by t he Nat i onal Associ ation of | nsur ance
Comm ssioners; clarifying conditions for the release of insurer
deposits; defining travel insurance that nay be sold under a
travel insurance |imted producer license; establishing criteria
for licensing of nonresident independent adjusters as resident
adj usters; exenpting rewards under a wellness program from
treatment as insurance discrimnation or rebating; making
certain insurance required of the Conprehensive Health Insurance
Associ ation perm ssive rather than mandatory; providing for the
adm nistration of |oss reinbursenent policies and paynents to
guaranty associations during insolvency proceedings; rmaking
certain provisions relating to statenents on applications and
guar ant eed renewabi lity for i ndi vi dual heal th i nsurance
applicable to hospital and nedical service corporations; making
public certain fornms and rel ated docunents filed for approval by
a hospital or nedical service corporation after the filing
beconmes effective; relating to deposits of self-funded multiple
enpl oyer welfare arrangenents; repealing reasons that the
director of insurance may use to deny or revoke a |icense; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 22

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2009



“"An Act relating to requiring subcontractors who do not have
enpl oyees and who are acting as independent contractors to
secure paynent for workers' conpensation, and to requiring
subcontractors who fail to secure paynent of wor ker s’
conpensation to pay additional premuns incurred by contractors
because of that failure."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1
Encouraging the installation of fire sprinkler systenms in
resi dences.
- MOVED CSHCR 1(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 22

SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS' COMPENSATI ON: SUBCONTRACTORS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWFORD, BUCH

01/ 20/ 09 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 16/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 16/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 16/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HCR 1

SHORT TI TLE: RESI DENTI AL FI RE SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C
03/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of Insurance, Anchorage O fice

Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 175.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2009



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as one of the joint prine
sponsors of HB 22.

PAUL GROSSI, Staff

Representative Harry Crawford

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 22, on behalf of one of the
joint prinme sponsors of HB 22, Representative Harry Crawf ord.

ALAN W LSON, Owmner

Al aska Renovators, Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 22.

BRONSON FRYE, Busi ness Representative

Painters & Allied Trades Local 1959 (1 UPAT Local 1959)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

CHRI S GREGG

Painters and Allied Trades Local 1959 (1 UPAT Local 1959)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

DARRYL KLOEPFER, Vi ce-President

Pacific Partition Systens

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

M CHAEL GALI OTO
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

KEI TH MONTGOVERY

Carpenters Local 1281,

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 22.

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HCR 1.

JEFF TUCKER

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2009



Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 1.

JEFF FEID, Loss Mtigation Adm nistrator

State Farm | nsurance

Bl oom ngton, IL

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HCR 1.

PAUL M CHELSOHN

Al aska State Honme Buil ders Associ ati on ( ASHBA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HCR 1.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant Fire Marshal

Division of Fire and Life Safety

Central O fice

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HCR 1.

GREY M TCHELL, Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Labor Standards & Safety

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DLWD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HCR 1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:20: 29 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Representatives Lynn,
Coghill, Holmes, and O son were present at the call to order.

Representative Berta Gardner was al so in attendance.

HB 175-1 NSURANCE

3:20: 37 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 175, "An Act relating to insurance, including
treating as confidential certain information submtted to the
director of insurance by the National Association of Insurance
Comm ssioners; clarifying conditions for the release of insurer
deposits; defining travel insurance that may be sold under a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2009



travel insurance limted producer license; establishing criteria
for licensing of nonresident independent adjusters as resident
adj usters; exenpting rewards under a wellness program from
treatment as insurance discrimnation or rebating; naking
certain insurance required of the Conprehensive Health |nsurance
Associ ation perm ssive rather than mandatory; providing for the
adm nistration of |oss reinbursenent policies and paynents to
guaranty associations during insolvency proceedings; making
certain provisions relating to statenents on applications and
guar ant eed renewabi lity for i ndi vi dual heal th i nsurance
applicable to hospital and nedical service corporations; nmaking
public certain fornms and rel ated docunents filed for approval by
a hospital or nedical service corporation after the filing
becones effective; relating to deposits of self-funded multiple
enpl oyer welfare arrangenents; repealing reasons that the
director of insurance may use to deny or revoke a license; and
providing for an effective date."

3:21:11 PM

LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Anchorage Ofice
Depar t ment of Community & Econom c  Devel opnent ( DCCED)
i ntroduced hersel f.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 175, Version 26-LS0579\S, Bail ey,
3/16/ 09, as the work draft. There being no objection, Version S
was adopted as the work draft.

3:21: 52 PM

M5. HALL explained the only change in Version S is the renova
of Sections 25 and 26, relating to receivership and |iquidation
statutes for lost reinbursenent policies and early access to
funds from an insolvent insurer. She indicated some concern was
expressed about the |anguage and the division did not believe
the provisions were critical so the |anguage was renoved from
the bill. She enphasi zed the remainder of HB 175 did not have
any changes.

3:22:37 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that he would hold over HB 175 for further
consideration to all ow stakeholders to review the changes.

HB 22- WORKERS' COMPENSATI ON: SUBCONTRACTORS

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2009



3:22: 51 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 22, "An Act relating to requiring subcontractors
who do not have enployees and who are acting as independent
contractors to secure paynent for workers' conpensation, and to
requiring subcontractors who fail to secure paynent of workers'
conpensation to pay additional premuns incurred by contractors
because of that failure."

3:22:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD, Al aska State Legislature, as one
of the joint prinme sponsors of HB 22, related his |ong-standing
passion for this issue. He offered his belief that HB 22 woul d
“level the playing field.” He explained that currently a nunber
of subcontractors claimto be owner/operators and not enpl oyees.
He opined that some subcontractors have a legitimate claim but
others do not. This bill renoves the uncertainty, and requires
everyone who subcontracts to a general contractor to obtain
wor kers’ conpensati on i nsurance.

CHAIR OLSON announced that a conmittee substitute (CS) is
fort hcom ng. He offered his hope that the CS would pass and
becone t he nati onw de nodel

PAUL CGROSSI, Staff, Representative Harry Crawford, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, stated that he has reviewed the proposed commttee

substi tute. He opined that the commttee substitute would
[1] \I\Dr k. n

3:26: 15 PM

ALAN W LSON, Owner, Al aska Renovators, Inc., stated that he is a
Juneau- based honebui |l der. He related that this issue has been
around for sonme tinme. He explained that the primary issue is

that in the honebuilding industry, contractors use nunerous sole
proprietor subcontractors such as carpet, tile, cabinetnakers,
and other subcontractors. He indicated that when subcontractors
are |icensed, they can exenpt thenselves from workers'
conpensation insurance. He further explained that the insurance
industry requires contractors to obtain certificates of

insurance from all subcontractors. He said, “That’'s the
probl em” He highlighted that sone subcontractors do not have
the certificates and bill the contractor who nust pay based on
the amount of the invoice. He offered that he has not

specifically reviewed the “Tennessee Language” incorporated in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2009



the proposed commttee substitute, but believes it will take the
“gray area out of this issue and resolve it once and for all.”

3:28:01 PM

BRONSON FRYE, Busi ness Representative, Painters & Allied Trades
Local 1959 (1UPAT Local 1959), speaking on behalf |UPAT Local
1959, offered support for HB 22, which requires workers’
conpensation insurance for sole proprietors or owner/operators.
He explained that his organization represents worker in trades

such as painting, drywall taping, and floor covering. He
related that he supports the bill since it has beconme standard
operating procedure for contractors in painting, drywal |

finishing, and floor covering industry to bid |arge-scale
commercial construction projects and re-subcontract the project
to entire crews conprised of owner/operators. He enphasi zed
t hat sole proprietors can waive the right to workers’
compensat i on. However, when the entire workforce is made up of
owner/operators wthout workers’ conpensation, the contractor
has a huge bidding advantage. He opined that the practice is
“killing the industry” by making it alnost inpossible for
legitimate contractors to conpete. He offered his belief that
HB 22 would provides assurance that |aborers will be properly
insured. Additionally, contractors bidding work will conpete in
a fair and open playing field. Furthernore, he stressed that
the practice of subcontracting to nultiple tiers of “so called
contractors” in an effort to avoid workers' conpensation
i nsurance and taxes has becone comonplace in construction. He
recalled a Craigslist advertisenment on February 12, 2009, that
advertised for independent contractors for comercial work in

Juneau. He said, “Under the requirements, it says experience
not necessary, onsite training is provided. And then, under
conpensation it says, hourly range $9-11 per hour. Ri ght
underneath that it says, ‘This is a contract job’.” He pointed
out that he has worked in the construction field “his whole
life.” He opined that he has never encountered a legitimte
subcontractor working under a legitimate subcontract with zero
experience earning $9 per hour. He said, “l1 think anyone would

agree that soneone working in comercial construction with no
experi ence working for $9 per hour is far nore likely to be an
enpl oyee of sone sort and by no neans a true independent
contractor.” He offered that he nentioned the Craigslist
adverti senent to denonstrate how brazen sone contractors have
become in their msclassification of enployees in an effort to
avoid workers' conpensation insurance as well as any taxes a
contractor would normally match for their enployees. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2009



reiterated his support for HB 22 and applauded Representative
Crawford for introducing the bill.

3:31: 05 PM

CHRIS GREGG Painters and Allied Trades Local 1959 (1 UPAT Loca
1959), speaking on behalf of |UPAT Local 1959, offered support
for HB 22. He stated he is affiliated with |UPAT, which
represents worker in trades such as painting, drywall taping,
and floor covering in the construction arena. He explained that
in recent years the market has been “ravaged” by contractors who
bid nmajor jobs and then |ease out the work to large crews of
i ndependent contractors. He further explained that the
i ndependent contractors are not required to pay workers
conpensation insurance or federal insurance. He enphasized that
this gives the contractor the ability to bid work wthout
considering the cost of workers' conpensation insurance. Thus
the contractor has a “consi derable edge” against any contractor
who pays for insurance for his/her enployees as required by
state |aw. He offered his belief that workers' conpensation
insurance is calculated at nearly 30 percent of the payrol
costs, this could nean that an unscrupul ous contractor can shave
t housands of dollars, or hundreds of thousands of dollars from
bid proposals by m sclassifying his/her workers. He said, “The
m scl assification of enployees has beconme standard operating
procedure in the taping, painting, and floor covering markets in
Al aska. And it nust conme to an end if the |aw abiding, honest
contractors are going to have any chance at being conpetitive.”
He appl auded Representative Crawford’s efforts on this bill. He
stated that the | UPAT fully supports HB 22.

3:33: 02 PM

DARRYL KLOEPFER, Vi ce-President, Pacific Partition Systens,
stated that his business has been in Al aska since 1976. Hi s
busi ness predom nantly contracts for netal stud primng gypsum
wal | board, drywall taping, and painting subcontractors. He
stated that he has been out of the taping and painting for
approximately 10 years as a result subcontractors not being
classified as enpl oyees. He opined that his business was at a
di sadvant age anount i ng to an approxi mat el y 30 per cent
di sadvantage in bid awards. He thanked the prinme sponsor of HB
22. He related that he fully supports HB 22. He pointed out
that he is currently involved in estimting significant anmounts
of state and nunicipal governnent projects. He indicated that
he is currently being asked by general contractors who support
t he “independent subcontractor trade force” to separate out the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2009



bid estimate for netal studs and drywall due to an influx of
subcontractors who install gypsum wall board. He expl ained that
he nust separate out the costs when bidding. He opined that he
is in jeopardy when bidding comrercial projects, which is a very
frustrating situation. He thanked the legislature for review ng
the definition of enployee versus independent subcontractor. He
stated he reviewed sonme of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
tax | aws. He said, “None of these independent contractors that
we're forced to conpete against have a category defined by the
RS as a profit and | oss exposure. There is no |oss exposure to
t hese individuals. They’'re being paid, basically on an hourly
basis.” He concluded by reiterating his support for HB 22.

M CHAEL GALI OTO agreed wth his coll eagues.
3:36:18 PM

KEI TH MONTGOVERY, Carpenters Local 1281, on behalf of the
Carpenters Local 1281, stated that his union is affiliated with
the United Brotherhood of Carpenters. He related that his union
represents carpenters, drywall finishers, netal set franers, and
various trades that fall wthin the scope of carpentry. He
said, “Quite frankly, it’s a misclassification of workers.” He
related his experience that tiers of subcontractors are
i ndependent contractors who buy the material, direct the work

and pay workers, sonetines “cash under the table.” He said,
“Basically, it’s gamng the system’” He opined that when a
wor ker gets injured on the job and receives hospital care and is
not covered, the costs are often absorbed by the hospital. He

related that not providing workers' conpensation insurance is
unfair to legitinmate businesses. Further, sone workers sign up
as i ndependent contractors and are not paid. He offered that HB
22 is a neans to “level the playing field.”

3:38: 12 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 22 will be held over for further
consideration. He anticipated that a conmttee substitute would
be forthcom ng.

3:38: 37 PM

The committee took an at-ease from3:38 p.m to 3:39 p.m

HCR 1- RESI DENTI AL FI RE SPRI NKLER SYSTEMS

3:39:34 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2009



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1, Encouraging the installation
of fire sprinkler systens in residences.

3:39:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, stated he
has a proposed commttee substitute for HCR 1 for the commttee
to consi der.

3:40: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HCR 1, Version 26-LS0228\R, Bailey, 3/19/09
as the work draft.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purposes of discussion.
3:40: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that concern was expressed that
this resolution mght be confused with other |egislation that
contains mnmandatory provisions. Thus, the title and several
places in the resolution specifically address that the program
is voluntary.

3:41:16 PM
CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection.

There being no further objection, Version R was before the
conmittee.

3:41: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related that he participated in a fire
denonstration in Honer. The trailer was blocked by PLEXI GAS.
He explained that the trailer was equipped with a residential
fire sprinkler system He indicated that residential fire
sprinklers are activated at a much | ower tenperature and rel ease
a lower volume of water than comrercial sprinkler systens.
Thus, instead of flowing at a rate of 50-100 gallons a m nute,
the residential sprinkler emts a mst at a rate of 15 gallons

per m nute. He pointed out that the comercial system is
designed to save buildings and property, but the residential
system is designed to put out the fire to save lives. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2009



explained that he has worked with the state fire marshal to
develop the program in hopes that homeowners could obtain
i nsurance savings on their hones. He referred to nenbers’
packets to a sheet titled Residential Structure Fires, to
statistics. He offered that the |eading causes of fire include

35 percent from cooking, and 39 percent from heating. He
hi ghlighted that in reducing those two itens, nearly 75 percent
of all fires would be reduced. This, the HCR 1 encourages

installing residential fire sprinklers.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated he checked prices at a |ocal
business, Harri's Plunbing and Heating, and a sprinkler that
would cover a 10-foot to 12-foot <circular area retails for
$8. 20. He indicated that would cover a 155 degree angle, which
threads to a pipe in the ceiling or the wall. He surm sed that
the system could run off the existing water system and a pl unber
or honeowner could install the system for increased safety. He
enphasi zed that HCR 1 encourages full devel opnment of the program

on a voluntary basis to save |ives. He remarked that the
biggest loss of life is due to unattended cooking fires and
people die from these fires. He stressed that a residential

sprinkler head could cover the stove and could prevent |oss of
life. He recalled several instances in which people lost their
lives due to a fire such as the one in Ketchikan in which four

state workers died. He recapped the purpose of the resolution
is to reduce loss of life. He mentioned that the resolution
also instructs the Division of |Insurance, Department  of

Commerce, Community, & Econom c Developnent to work with the
i nsurance industry to develop an incentive program that would
provi de honmeowners who have installed sprinkler systenms to
obtain credit on honeowners insurance or fire insurance.

3:46: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON showed a video clip that denonstrates the
sprinkler head and a hunorous fire departnent advertisenent that
encourages honeowners to install sprinkler systems in their
hones.

3:48: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON enphasi zed that those involved in the fire
industry are wrking to educate people that residential

sprinkler systens save lives. In Al aska, discounts on insurance
are not given unless the entire house is covered by a sprinkler
system He opined that is necessary for snokers, but non-

snokers could install sprinklers in kitchens and in furnace

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2009



roons or have plunbers install them He indicated that the
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment works with plunbers

to verify the sprinkler heads have been installed. He
highlighted the goal is to protect property and Ilife. He
acknowl edged that this bill does not target new construction,

since Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC) or others may
i npose a requirenment for a sprinkler system throughout the hone,
so installing individual sprinklers would not suffice in those
I nst ances. He referred to the packet to the executive sunmmary
of the National Institute of Standards and Technol ogy’s
“Benefit-Cost Analysis of Residential Fire Sprinkler Systens.”
He read [original punctuation provided]:

Over the 2002 to 2005 study period, houses equipped
with snoke alarnms and a fire sprinkler system
experienced 100 % fewer civilian fatalities, 57% fewer
civilian injuries, and 32 % less direct property
| osses and indirect costs resulting from fire than
houses equi pped only with snoke al arns.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON related that statenment relates the
benefits of having a snoke alarm and a sprinkler system He
acknowl edged the inportance of snoke alarns to alert people
about the fire, but the sprinklers ®“knock down” the fire and
ensure people have tine to exit the hone. He read [original
punct uation provided]:

In addition, homeowners of dwellings wth fire
sprinkler systems received an added bonus of an 8%
reduction in their honmeowner insurance premum per
year, according to |ISO This report finds the
nmonetized value of a residential fire sprinkler
system over a 30-year analysis period, to yield
homeowners $4994 in present val ue benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recapped the benefits of the system
stressing that the systens are not mandated, but are voluntary
and the resolution is neant to encourage Al askans to install
home sprinklers in two sources: the kitchen and furnace room
He nentioned from his own experience that freezing and thaw ng
has not been a problem He also nentioned he installed
sprinkler heads in his 70-foot tender, and the sprinklers have
been subject to freezing and thawing for 15 vyears wthout
pr obl ens. He highlighted that plastic tubing is a very stable
very safe nethod. He nentioned that he has had copper tubing
split. He reiterated that HCR 1's whole purpose is to save
lives by encouraging insurance conpanies to offer reductions for

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2009



those who use the fire nmarshal’s nodel program for residential
fire sprinkler system coverage. The fire marshal program uses
plati num gold, and silver stars to recognize various |evels of
sprinkl er coverage. He acknow edged that currently insurance
conpanies are not offering reduced insurance rates. He stated
letters of support are in nmenbers’ packets.

3:55:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COCHILL referred to the handout in nmenbers’
packets titled “Residential Structure Fires” and inquired as to
whet her a breakout of fire causes is available for the 2007
residential fires caused by heating, noting that accounted for
39 percent of residential fires. He expressed interest in
knowi ng the breakout of types of heating systenms such as wood
burni ng stoves or furnaces.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered to provide the information.
3:56: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether the fire marshal’s program
is based on an existing program other states are using or if
this is a new tenpl ate.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ SEATON  answered that the fire marshal’s
residential safety star nodel was devel oped by the fire marsha
and specifies silver, bronze, and gold star levels for single
famly residences. He explained the concept is being devel oped
with the insurance industry.

3:58:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES inquired as to how sensitive sprinklers
are and whet her accidental discharges could cause water danage.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed that had been an initial problem
but that the issues have been resol ved.

CHAI R OLSON noted that the next person to testify, Jeff Tucker,
has been his fire chief for a nunber of years.

3:59:26 PM
JEFF TUCKER, Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA), on behalf of

the AFCA, offered support for HCR 1. He stated that HCR 1
encourages home fire sprinkler systenms and seeks to provide

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2009



incentives for individuals to install home fire sprinkler
systens in their hones. He offered his belief that the AFCA
understands the benefits of this program and the value of

provi ding incentives. He opined that coordinating the effort
with the state fire marshal’s office and insurance conpanies is
a good way of acconplishing the progranis goal. He reiterated

the AFCA' s support for HCR 1.
4:01: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to whether the AFCA would
perform inspections and the cost of inspections if the fire
mar shal s nodel programis adopt ed.

MR. TUCKER explained that his fire departnent currently perforns
home safety inspections for snoke detectors. He further
explained that the current regulation wunder National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) code, 13 D [Standard for the
Installation of Sprinkler Systens in One and Two Famly
Dwel I'i ngs and Manufactured Hones] can be performed by plunbers
who are trained to install them He opined the systens are
fairly sinple systens conpared to commercial systens. He
further opined that nost fire departnments have personnel trained
to perform sonme type of code enforcenent. He stated the cost
would depend on the fire departnment that perfornmed the
i nspections. He offered that his fire departnment currently
performnms inspections at no charge to homeowners.

4:02:14 PM

JEFF FEID, Loss Mtigation Adm nistrator, State Farm | nsurance,
stressed the value of residential sprinklers. The Home Fire
Sprinkler Coalition is the organization |eading the country in
educating consuners, builders, and fire service on the value of
residential sprinklers. He opined that State Farm is the
| argest insurer of hones in Alaska and in the U S He offered
support for the purpose of the resolution, which is to encourage
installation of fire sprinklers in residences. He said, “The
concept’s terrific.” He indicated that State Farm |nsurance
of fers discounts for homes that are installed in accordance with
nati onal recognized standards that are proven to work.

MR. FEID explained that the National Fire Protection Association
(NFPA) codes that are recognized include NFPA 13 [the Standard
for the Installation of Sprinkler Systens]; NFPA 13 D, [the
Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One- and
Two-Fam |y Dwellings and Manufactured Hones]; and 13 R [the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2009



Standard for the Installation of Spri nkl er Systens in
Residential OCccupancies up to and Including Four Stories in
Hei ght] . He highlighted that State Farm |nsurance provides
di scounts to honeowners who neet those nationally recognized
st andar ds. He stated that State Farm Insurance is not able to
i ssue discounts for systens that do not neet the nationally
recogni zed standards. He said, “In fact, if we were to realize
an increase in fire losses in structures that have hybrid
systens or systens that didn’t conply, but had sone sort of
sprinkler in there, there mght be pressure to raise rates to
adjust to that type of loss.”

MR. FEID expressed concern that the proposal sets different
levels of sprinkler protection and designs that are not
consistent with or equivalent to the national standards. He
suggested that if different levels are desired that the | owest
level of silver or Dbronze be a conplete fire system in
accordance with NFPA 13 D for the one and two famly dwellings.
Secondly, he suggested false data may be produced in the event
of a fatality, mjor injury, or structure |loss from systens
desi gned bel ow the national standard. He opined those instances
would indicate that fire sprinklers are not as effective as
believed, which could set back any advocacy for residential
sprinkl ers. He said, “Lastly, the concept of partial sprinkler
or hybrid sprinklers, just in the kitchen, just over the
furnace; that concept was flatly rejected when considered by
Standards Committee on Fire Sprinklers.” He thanked the
commttee and stated that he |ooks forward to working with the
fire marshal and the sponsor of the resolution to fine-tune this
proposal to encourage people to use residential sprinklers.

4:05:21 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HOLMES inquired as to whether problens are
encountered with fire sprinklers accidentally discharging and
causi ng wat er damage.

MR. FEID answered that the failure rate of fire sprinklers is 1
to 60 mllion sprinkler heads in use in the U S today. He
stated that the concern of failure rates is not an issue for
State Farm | nsurance.

4: 06: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL related his own chil dhood experiences and
asked if the fire sprinklers are safe around children

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2009



MR. FEID answered that it has not been a problem He rel ated
hi s conmpany has encountered many issues with plunbing systens.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether M. Feid would consider the
fire marshal residential safety star program or if State Farm
| nsurance woul d only consi der the NFPA standards.

MR. FEID answered that State Farm Insurance would recognize the
NFPA standards previously nentioned, such as 13, 13 D, and 13 R
since other standards have not been tested. He expressed
concern that if the honmeowner installs one sprinkler in a room
wi t hout design consideration for water pressures needed and the
gallons per mnute of water to operate the sprinkler, that the
fire sprinkler may not even operate.

4:07:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to how his conmpany certifies
that the fire sprinklers were installed wusing the NFPA
st andards.

MR. FEID answered that State Farm Insurance receives an
application and verifies that the home sprinkler system was
installed using the NFPA standards nentioned, and applies the
di scount appropriately.

4:08:18 PM

PAUL M CHELSCHN, Al aska State Hone Buil ders Associati on (ASHBA),
speaki ng on behalf of the ASHBA, stated that he has worked on
sprinkler issues for ten years, including serving on the
International Code Council (ICC) boards for fire and Ilife
safety, building and energy, and nechanical and plunbing, and
the board of the National Association of Honme Buil ders (NAHB)
He thanked the sponsor of the resolution for including
“voluntarily” in the resolution. He identified three places the
word occurred and since he was participating by tel econference,
asked for verification. He referred to the word “voluntary” in
the follow ng instances: page 1, lines 1 and 9; and on page 2,
lines 12 and 19.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed that the word “voluntary” appears
in those locations in Version E

MR M CHELSOHN offered the ASHBA's support for HCR 1, as

witten. He offered his belief that State Farm I nsurance did an
excel l ent good | ob. He advised nenbers that a process is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2009



currently underway to nandate sprinkler systens in all one and
two famly dwellings through the inclusion of a chapter in the
International Residential Code (IRC) IRC 2009 edition. He
expl ained that matter was voted on in Mnneapolis, Mnnesota in
Sept enber 2008. He enphasi zed that “voluntary” has always been
in effect in Alaska and in many states nati onw de. He stressed
that it is of the utnost inportance to keep the process

vol untary. He said, “No one wants to be forced to place
sprinkler systenms in their hone.” He offered that he has a
famliarity with sonme video clips. He nentioned that the video

shows an arson started fire, with one sprinkler head |ocated
directly over the fire's source, and the sprinkler system put

out the fire. However, he noted that the |ow volune sprinkler
systens, when placed on a ceiling will spray 6 to 8 feet, but
will not cover a 14-foot room Thus, it would only directly
affect a fire started immediately under it. Additionally, he
offered his belief that the Ilowcost system would not be
adequat e. He questioned the cost of $8, that many industry

studi es show the cost ranges fro $3 to $8 per square foot.

MR MCHELSOHN related the added cost affects the avail able

buyers for a hone. He indicated that for every $1 to $2
t housand increase in value that the seller loses 2 to 4 percent
of the avail abl e buyers. Thus, he offered support as long as
installation of fire sprinklers remains voluntary. He feared

that fire sprinklers my soon be nandated. He recalled that the
State Farm I nsurance only recognizes the NFPA 13, 13 D or 13 R
systens, which is typical in the industry. He stated that when
a fire marshal demands the NFPA standards nmentioned, that it
includes nore than sprinkler heads, such as spotlighting,
audi bl e sounds, and the actual placenent of the sprinkler heads.
He recalled costs to install a system for a State Farm agent
that cost $33,000 system He acknow edged that the system was
strictly voluntary, but pointed out that it was not a |ow cost
system

4:14: 20 PM

MR. M CHELSOHN recalled prior testinony and confirnmed that the
t ubi ng does freeze and does break. He agreed that the tubing is
nore tolerant to cold than copper, but it can break and freeze.
He recalled soneone inquired as to whether the fire sprinklers
will wthstand children’s tanpering. He pointed out that the
fire sprinklers have not been tested in residential hones as to

how nuch abuse the systens w Il endure. He opined that in the
past 20 years that fire deaths in new honmes has been reduced by
74 percent. He further opined that a fire departnment’s

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2009



residential hone response represents less than two percent of
their energency calls. He offered his belief that HCR 1 will
not address these concerns, but he does believe that it is a
great proposal. He offered total support for HCR 1, so long as
the state, the legislature, and the fire marshal understand that
it is voluntary.

4:15:57 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL inquired as to whether M. M chel sohn
could provide reasons for the significant reductions in new
homes fire safety rates.

MR. M CHELSOHN offered his belief that the inplenentation of
many safety standards such as the ground fault circuit
interrupter (GFlI) system and arc fault interrupter systens that
i mredi ately shut off breakers due to arcing faults that may not
cause a conventional <circuit breaker to trip. Addi tionally,
other safety standards include better drywall techniques,
i npl enentation of fire drafting, better insulation blocking,
installation of better flue piping, and nore efficient heat
sources, and better cooking appliances. He opined that nost of
the deaths occur in older homes and nobile hones. He further
opined it would be alnost inpossible to install fire sprinkler
systens that would not freeze in nobile hones.

MR MCHELSOHN, in response to Representative Coghill, opined
that the heat source in kitchens is of concern since they
usual ly involve grease. He indicated that putting water on
grease wl| spread the fire, and the fire <creates an
over abundance of snoke. He related that the majority of fires
start on the outside from cooking utensils such as outdoor
grills, or from ashes placed outside the door. He further
opined that fire sprinkler systens wll not affect these fires.

4:18: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to whether supplies in hones
have enough water supply capacity to allow fire sprinklers to be
plunbed in or if the fire sprinkler would require retrofitting a
mai n feeder |ine.

MR M CHELSON recalled that the State Farm Building serviced
four bathroons, which required an 8-inch water main from the
curb, which cost over $11, 000. He opined that nost city water
suppl i es are adequate. However, over 33 percent of residences
in Alaska are on private systens. Those systens m ght need

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2009



storage systens and punps to supply primary water. He recalled
the statistic of faulty sprinklers and nentioned that the
Sheraton Hotel had a freeze up several nonths causing over
$100, 000 in danmges. He related several other incidents of
issues with fire sprinkler systens.

4:21:00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL related that his own hone is on a well.
He opined that it mght be necessary to create separate
standards for those not on water mains in order to rate them for
the fire marshal’s program

MR. M CHELSOHN offered his belief that another problem wth
storage system is the systems nust be inspected annually. He
opined that insurance policies contain exclusions that can
result in non-paynent of clains for home owners who do adhere to

annual | nspections. In further response to Representative
Coghill, M. Mchelsohn opined that fire sprinklers can also
create a false sense of security. He answered that if a hone

owner sublets his/her home and a fire occurs the plaintiff wll
go after the deepest pocket.

4:23:34 PM

KELLY N COLELLO, Assistant Fire Mrshal, Division of Fire
and Life Safety, Central Ofice, Departnment of Public
Safety (DPS), read a letter from the State Fire Marshal,
Dave Tyler, as follows:

Thank you for sponsoring HCR 1, residential fire
sprinkl er incentive program I support this
resolution and daily we encounter the ravages of fire
as we are notified of fire events occurring throughout
the State of Al aska. The single famly residence is
an area where we have little regulatory authority.
Qur data indicates that this is where nost of our
structure fires and alnost all of Alaska' s fire deaths
occur.

The intention of this programis to help reward those

who take this proactive step. Installing residential
sprinklers not only makes for a safer [living
environment, it reduces fire suppression costs and the
hazard to fire fighters. It also reduces the risk to
i nsurance conpanies. This incentive programis a good
idea in that direction. I ndi vi dual responsibility is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2009



inperative to hone fire safety. No one can take
better care of you or your famly than you. When
those efforts fail, nothing will protect you better
than an operational residential sprinkler system
Even in our urban areas we lose far too many lives in
homes fromfire.

The nost effective way to save your honme fromfire is
to prevent it in the first place. Wen we fail to
prevent the fire a residential fire sprinkler system
is the next best thing. The sprinkler system wll
usual ly extinguish the fire before the fire departnent
gets to the scene. At the very least it will contain
the fire until help arrives. | firmy believe it is
appropriate to recognize those who do take this
proactive approach to hone fire safety and recomend
this incentive program to encourage the installation
of residential fire sprinkler systens.

4:25:39 PM

MR. NI COLELLO, in response to Chair O son, nentioned that the
| etter should be in nenbers’ packets.

4:26: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to his opinion on whether the
fire marshal’s office would permt qualified installers.

MR. NI COLELLO said that he would envision that a plunber who had
the appropriate training from the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent or held an ICC certificate could ascertain

if the home net the requirenents. He opined that the fire
marshal would issue the certificate. In further response to
Representative Coghill, M. Nicolello explained that the

departnment would not promulgate regulations for a voluntary
program

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL recapped that the fire marshal would use
a formal nodel that would allow authorized and permtted
installers an authority to determine the safety star program
| evel such as platinum gold, silver, or bronze program He
related his understanding that the program would be voluntary,
but authorized installers would install the fire sprinklers. He
inquired as to whether the legislature would handle this or if
the fire marshal would formalize the requirenents.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2009



4:28:21 PM

MR. NI COLELLO pointed out that the proposal is in the formof a
resolution, and not a bill. He stated that until the programis
formalized that the departnent cannot adopt regulations but
woul d recogni ze the reconmmended practi ce.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL related a scenario in which nost people
were on a well system but sonme people had sprinkler systens
installed. He related his understanding that insurance would be
based on fire engine coverage. He inquired as to whether the
fire sprinkler systens would affect the insurance area or just
t he individual .

4:29:44 PM

MR. NI COLELLO answered that this would not have any effect the
on the ISO rating. The Fire Suppression Rating Schedul e (FSRS)
is the rmanual ISO wuses in reviewng the fire-fighting
capabilities of individual comunities. The schedul e neasures
the major elenents of a conmunity's fire-suppression system for
the area. He el aborated that the rating is a public capability
rating through the insurance service organization such as class
1, 2, or 3 rating. He related his understandi ng that the nunber
or “sprinklered” commercial or residential buildings would not
affect the insurance. In further response to Representative
Coghill, M. N colello answered that the fire marshal would be
wlling to assist an area in devel opi ng a workabl e pl an.

4:31: 04 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HCR 1.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL inquired as to whether any other
i nsurance conpani es have responded.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he has not had any fornal

contact with insurance conpani es. He opined that this is a
process that requires an interim process to see what the program
is before the conpanies can comment. He related that HCR 1
encourages the Division of Insurance to hold the conversations
with the insurance conpanies or the fire marshal. He
acknowl edged that ultinmately the insurance conpanies m ght opt
for the conplete hone systens. However, the goal is to have

individual fire sprinklers set off, which uses nuch snaller
wat er supply, which are generally activated by a small fire. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2009



explained that the residential fire sprinkler will be active at
a much lower tenperature, when a fire initially happens. He
offered his belief that he does not know how the insurance
conpanies wll react, but the director of the D vision of
Insurance is wlling to initiate the conversation. He further
opi ned that parti al coverage residential fire sprinklers
probably woul d not help in hones with snokers.

4:35:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL referred to the handout titled “Concept
paper provided to Rep. Paul Seaton on 1/11/06 by DPS'. He
referred to the fixed levels of fire protection for single
famly dwellings recognized for the Residential Safety Star
Program installers permtted by the SMFO under 13 AAC 50.035.
He asked the sponsor of HCR 1 to el aborate on the concept.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered that many areas are not subject

to building codes. He explained that installers would need to
be certified to install the fire sprinklers. He related that
certified installers can design full coverage home systens.

This resolution would encourage existing honeowners to instal
fire sprinklers to save lives.

4:37:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated his appreciation that the program
woul d be vol untary. He inquired as to whether the sponsor has
had any discussions with DLMWD to offer training programs to
certify installers.

GREY M TCHELL, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Labor
Standards & Safety, Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent
(DLVWD), offered his belief that any licensed journeyman plunber
could install fire sprinklers. He said he was not aware of any
devel opnments for workforce plans in this area or for the
certification the insurance conpanies night require.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL opined that the certified sprinkler
system installers are a subset of the plunbers and pipefitters.
He said, “lI can see us getting into a little bit of a “brouhaha”
especially if you are going to be tasked with putting together
some kind of a plunber’s certification for residential sprinkler
systens.” He asked if that has been consi dered.

MR. M TCHELL opined that it is possible that would devel op, but
since the program is voluntary he doubted that the DLVWD woul d

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2009



have a nmandate to create a specialized license for sprinkler
instal |l ati ons.

4:40: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON comrented that he recalled simlar
conversations about the differences between using the |anguage
verify or certify. He recalled that legislative drafting
informed them from their standpoint, there was not any
di ff erence.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HCR 1, Version 26-LS0228\R, Bailey, 3/19/009,
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal not e. There  being no  objection,
CSHCR 1(L&C) was reported from the House Labor and Commerce
Standing Comm ttee.

4:42:17 PM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
4:42 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 20, 2009



